
April 11, 2022

The Alexandria Borough Council met at the former location of First National Bank at 402 Main Street, Alexandria, PA 16611. The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by President Judy Scott.  President Scott led council in the Pledge of Allegiance and prayer.
Council members present were President Judy Scott, Vice President Joel Pheasant, Mike Peters, Victoria Wilt, Branden Foster, and Jane Pilch. Solicitor Greg Jackson, Treasurer Leslie McDermott, Ken Patterson, Haldan Kirsch (The Daily News), Mr. Rennell, and George Houck were also present.  
· Approve meeting minutes from March 14, 2022
· ‘Page 5, On the 300 block section… Brandon Foster…’ Mike Peters wants to ensure that the property mentioned is “Mike Smiths’” not Mike Peters or Brandons – Amendment needed
· Motion to accept the minutes as amended Mike Peters motioned, Brandon Foster seconded. All in favor. Motion carried. 
FINANCIAL REPORT AND AUTHORIZATION OF BILLS
· Authorization of the bills Leslie shared she just received the fire tax agreement and needs to get a payment out to the fire company
· Motion to accept the bills as discussed. Brandon motioned, Mike Peters seconded 
· Revenue budgetary increase… Leslie passed out paperwork for council to look over
· President Scott brought up that Alexandria hasn’t had a tax increase since 1997 – we know everything is going up. Mike Peters was very fiscally responsible when he was president many years ago – because of that despite what’s taken place recently he helped the borough be able to keep going without a tax increase until this point. If we stay on this trajectory our funds will be depleted. 
· Leslie McDermott created a spreadsheet showing what would happen if they increased things by 1, 2, or 3 mil. Rates (current mil rate is 5.50 – so $13,631 is currently raised) – right now with our monies the borough is ok… but Leslie expressed at another township it had been so long since they raised it that they couldn’t even raise it only 1 mil they had to raise it 2 mil at once – you don’t want to have to do more than 1 at a time if you don’t have to, smaller increments are better
· President Scott said we will discuss the budget in July and this will help us look ahead and allows the public an opportunity to community their thoughts on the budget
· Tori said, one thing she feels people may ask are what will we do with this? President Scott said we have things we have to cover as well, bills, etc – she also asked Leslie about a sidewalk tax, they think we could have that 
· Leslie explained what happens with the budgeting is that we project what will come in that year, not budgeting with the money in the account 
· Joel said so we aren’t operating at a deficit, but this would allow us to do things 
· President Scott mentioned things the community needs and many grant opportunities expect a match – this would help with that as well 
· Vice President Joel said with grants that we need a match where do we put these additional funds, Leslie said all of the money is usable except for liquid fuels 
· Mike Peters said even a rainy day fund - $161,000 isn’t really that much if we think about needing to do something in the community. 
· Joel acknowledged what Leslie said about raising the mil in smaller increments – Leslie agrees that you’ll need to show the community what you plan to do with the funds, Mike Peters said well, if we show them our current agenda they will see all the things we’re looking to do that require funding 
· Ken Patterson asked about a flat tax that way everybody pays the same, that would be the sidewalk tax. You’ve got a lot of people in this town that pay very little in comparison to what others pay. 
· Council agrees they will need to show the public what needs these funds will meet 

PUBLIC COMMENT
Mr. Rennell 
· The Library has made the decision to put a parking lot behind the library and they are requesting a permit to do that
· They’ve hired Jeff Tait to do the work for us and need council’s approval
· He provided copies of the agreement to council and George Houck to issue the permit 
· There will be 2 levels of asphalt, eventually they’d like to hook it up with sidewalks around and then eventually add handicap access to the back 
· George Houck will contact Jeff Tait in regards to permitting, etc. 
SOLICITOR REPORT
· Throughout… 
REPRESENTATIVE REPORT
· Ken Patterson
· President Scott asked Ken to share with council his thoughts on safety and security
· Ken said: 
· I had two ladies jump me at the playground – one lady called the cops, the kids are beating the equipment up and ripping things apart. We can’t let these kids beating things up. There have been kids on the roof of the shed, stomping holes 
· Some people are using the garbage can, some people aren’t, feels like it’s a battle from here on out 
· The cop said to the one lady, “What do you want me to do about it?” – the lady said talk to the kids or talk to their parents 
· President Scott said enforcement is key, George Houck asked why did the officer say he can’t do anything. Scott said we don’t want to have to see things get shut down, but we need to enforce some things and put a stop to this. 
· Community members are willing to put cameras on their property to protect our public spaces
· Ken said they go up late at night and during the day 
· President Scott asked if the Community Watch Group is accessible with everyone we could post that they are being filmed. Greg said it’s not required, no one expects privacy in a public space. What would you do with the evidence you have, if the State Police aren’t going to act your only option would be to bring some civil action against the parents of the children that are doing the damage – there would be some cost to fix the damage imposed. 
· Tori said some of the parents don’t care and some may be able to 
· The cop said he couldn’t do anything because no one filed a complaint
· Tori asked if we could have someone go to the parents, George said he has no problem doing that because he knows how much that nice playground cost 
· Greg said as far as a motion to have George go talk to someone, that’s not necessary, he can go do that. Mike Peters asked if we should make a motion to keep track as a first step? Greg said it’s not necessary… 
· George said what if I go speak to the parents and let them know there will be repercussions if they don’t stop their kids from doing this. Greg said if there’s damage being done to the boroughs property you can report it to the State Police, if they don’t respond then you will have to take civil action 
· President Scott asked if council is comfortable reaching out to members of our community placing cameras to help us keep watch and keep our town safe and without damage. Mike Peters agreed 
· Brandon is suggesting that council should get cameras up at the park and where the new bridge will go
· Jane is not in favor of cameras, but starting small 
· George asked if it’s okay that community members are videoing areas
· Tori Wilt feels council should go least restrictive first – as a parent I don’t want people videoing 24/7 while my little girl plays 
· Joel is concerned that these kids will move to the next property – they were vandalizing Joel’s personal property then moved to the park 
· George asked Greg, let’s say these kids are destroying things and I call the State Police and I saw them doing this – Greg said George said he certainly has the authority to contact the State Police and inform them of the damage being caused, what they do is up to them – if they don’t act, we can go civil. If you can identify who is causing the damage, identify the value of the damage caused, you could then file a civil action against the civil action for the monetary damage 
· George clarified – so if he sees the person doing this, I can send a notice to their parents of how much the damages cost and if the parents fight it, they go to the magistrate
· Jane said it is case by case, our issue right now with these kids is the playground damage, not a pattern – we need to isolate each incidence. 
· George said is what you’ll have to try to do is get their names

· George Houck 
· Ordinance Enforcement – a fee for the enforcement for the person doing it could be adding, Greg said usually that is referring to a filing fee. For example: George’s salary would not be a cost that would associate with enforcement. President Scott asked if his salary could be taken from the fine revenue, Greg said yes
· President Scott asked about how the fines are set, Greg said the fine is set by the Magistrate not council – council cannot charge a flat fee – in the ordinances there is a minimum and maximum, the actual number is set by the magistrate 
· Whomever you put in this position has the authority to be the point person and file the necessary complaint to start the prosecution process 
· Mike Peters asked is that a conflict if we have a mayor. Greg said no because moving forward whoever you put in this position is responsible for ordinance enforcement – Mike asked if the mayor would also be responsible for this? Greg said maybe, you’d have to cross that bridge at the time you have an active mayor 
· Greg said creating this position prevents someone from arguing that the person filing the citation against them doesn’t have the authority to do so – it removes ambiguities 
· Greg said you need to formulize the new ordinance entitled, “An Ordinance of the Borough of Alexandria, Pennsylvania, Creating the Position of Ordinance Enforcement Officer” 
· Mike Peters made a motion to put that ordinance up for advertisement and adoptions. Brandon Foster seconded. All in favor. Motion carried. 
· Greg said: assuming we advertise this and it passes next month you can then appoint George to this position next month 
· George shared with council that he’s been doing this job for a while and was always paid until this council come on board, now he doesn’t get paid and he would like to know why – ‘so you need to set something that I can get a little bit reimbursed for what I have to do, there’s a lot to do it. I have to make calls, make copies, do a lot of things, go to people’s houses’… VP Joel asked can you let me know how councils paid you before. What do you feel is reasonable compensation? George asked if $15 a permit is too much. Joel said are you talking specifically per permit or what about the Ordinance Enforcement?  


Old Business 
· Parking Lot Park Project
· Mike Peters mentioned that he feels the Museum Board feels it’d be easier for the borough to just donate the lot – bills and sense of ownership would be easier to deal with. President Scott asked how would that work as a municipality – would it benefit us to lease it and it would still allow us to utilize it – or give it to the museum for parks and rec
· Greg said the borough acquired that property to tear down the dilapidated property that was sitting on it, the lot was transferred to you to facilitate the destruction of the property 
· Judy asked if there is a benefit of owning a parks and rec for applying for grants 
· Jane asked why can’t the parking lot be a parking lot for the library 
· Short answer from Greg to questions posed via email from Rachelle Hopsicker: The FEMA ordinance has building restrictions in it so all of the building requirements will be found within the ordinance. If the borough maintains the property you need to ensure there isn’t an issue with water displacement or runoff – if the borough owns the property you’d be the subject of that wrath. 
· Regardless of who owns the property there will be environmental engineering to be done to construct anything and to give the professional service you need to get that done.
· Mike Peters needs a copy of the FEMA Ordinance 
· President Scott would like more time contacting more people regarding if it’s beneficial for the museum that they own it or the borough owns it  
· Vice President Pheasant said it’s a parking lot right now that we don’t want people to park in, so if we can pass it over and benefit the community that’s a good idea 
· Girl Scouts 
· Want to plant on May 7th – Pres. Scott said they still need to talk to Porter Twp
· Penelec Easements 
· Pres. Scott talked to Richard Fink about underground wiring to see what was needed, he made it clear that if 1 or 2 residents are not in favor they can’t do it. Council would need approval from every resident before Penelec would even do that engineering 
· VP Pheasant and Brandon think it’s unlikely to get all on board, but we could try 
· It would greatly increase property value
· P. Scott said with the existing polls the street lights are placed nicely and if we follow the same lighting spacing we do not need easements – so if council wanted new poles they would put them in – there would still be wires
· VP Joel said what does getting an easement mean exactly, P. Scott said that would allow Penelec to do the work at every property – does that mean they tear up the sidewalk and go under? Yes. 
· Tori Wilt said are we asking people to raise taxes and then say we are gonna spend it on this – we have to be prepared for bush back 
· Jane Pilch said is this for Main St only? No, it’s for the whole town 
· Greg clarified the $150,000 doesn’t involve moving any dirt, that’s just the paperwork aspect
· Greg asked how many properties are there? P Scott 142 – Greg explained, if you needed an easement for every property you’d be at approximately $7,400 recording cost at the court house alone 
· Jane Pilch needs the Revitalization Plan sent to her 
· Fireman’s Meeting Last Month
· Mike Peters shared at the last meeting they have document council needs to sign about the credentials the firemen have acquired – it helps them obtain grants and such. It’s a formality to give councils stamp of approval
· Jane Pilch made a motion to sign the document. Tori Wilt seconded. All in favor. Motion carried. 
· May 21st Bridge Dedication 
· Judy got a phone call requesting her to change the date of the dedication and she wanted to discuss with council 
· Joel asked what do we have in place for this event already… Judy spoke with state representatives and others about the date, but the official invitation will be going out this month. 
· [bookmark: _GoBack]Tori asked does she really have something else to do more important… 
· Joel said, while it would be great to have the politicians there, the person that helped to raise the funds should be there… 
· Mike Peters said, does the rest of the family know about the request from Erica to change the date
· Brandon Foster said, we just change the date 
· Joel and Judy want to ensure if we change the date will the other family members be able to be there on a different date 
· Council wants to find out what works best for the family and just do that day
· 300 Block
· John Pezce didn’t see it listed as Liquid Fuel funds – he said council could file and put it in for liquid fuel funds
· Greg said whether it is maintained and owned by the borough it can’t be blocked 
· The deed for every single property specifically references the use of the ally, whether it is an official public street or not it cannot be blocked
· Council can file for liquid fuel funds and for the one by Main Street Café as well – John Pezce said he could help us file – then council will need to maintain it
· It’s currently blocked now by a full trailer – Greg said if you add these to liquid fuels inventory it would probably be a good idea to have someone plot the boundaries of the alley by a surveyor because you can’t clearly tell where it is – it’s a grid on the deed reference – the specific location of the alleyway needs shown 
· It’s 177ft from the intersection on Main Street to the alley 
· Greg said if you wanted to bring an action against the individual blocking the road, you need to have the survey work done as well to clearly show where the property lines are
· It’s important it’s surveyed as well if we donate the property to the museum P Scott said 
· Mike Peters asked if we have someone on retainer, Greg said we have and engineering consultant, P Scott said Dain Davis – Mike will call him about a surveyor charge 

New Business
· George Houck Salary Discussion 
· VP Pheasant said he should have a monthly salary 
· P Scott said there’s a lot of work involved with what he does, does council want to give him a set salary – which is better way of handling verse a per item charge 
· You can set the rate of compensation next month once you determine the Ordinance Enforcement 
· Jane Pilch asked if we should do research on what Enforcement Officers make and Permit issuers make 
· P Scott asked about how we charge $25 per permit – we don’t charge for rooms, etc. – she proposed a 5% permit fee on projects, on a fence – same thing… you can’t count on it for your budget, but it would contribute to our revenue 
· Council thinks do something lower for permits, but then additional wage for the Enforcement Ordinance Officer
· Council would like to pay George $25 per permit and may change that in the future if necessary. P Scott said George had 8 permits in the last two years, can we pay him for those? 
· Tori Wilt made a motion to pay George Houck retroactively for 2020 and 2021 at $25 a permit. Jane Pilch seconded. All in favor. Motioned 

Entered Executive Session: N/A  

Meeting adjourned: 9:18 pm 

